ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF MEETING
OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF DAVID CITY, NEBRASKA

The undersigned members of the governing body of the City of David City, Nebraska,
hereby acknowledge receipt of advance notice of a _regular meeting of said body and the
agenda for such meetingtobe heldat _7:00 o 6 ¢ | o c k pl8'hday ob Aprilt 20%8, in the
meeting room of the City Office, 557 North 4" Street, David City, Nebraska.

This agenda is available for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk and may be
modified up to twenty-four hours prior to the opening of the meeting.

Dated this __ 6" day of April, 2018.

AGENDA AS FOLLOWS:
1. Roll Call;
2. Pledge of Allegiance;

Mayor Alan Zavodny
3. Inform the Public about the location of

the Open Meetings Act and the Citizens

Participation Rules;

4. Minutes of the March 14™ and March 26™, Council President Gary D. Smith
2018 meeting of the Mayor and City
Council;

5. Consideration of Progress Estimate #8 for
Constructors, Inc. in the amount of Council member Thomas J. Kobus
$99,235.60;

6. Consideration of Claims;

Committee and Officer Reports; Council member Dana E. Trowbridge

8. Presentation by Craig Reinsch, Olsson
Associates, concerning the April 3, 2018
bid opening concerning the WWTP
Improvements i OA Project #009-1925;

9. Consideration of awarding a bid for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Improvements;

Council member Kevin N. Hotovy

10. Discussion with Miller & Associates Council member Patrick J. Meysenburg
Consulting Engineers, P.C. concerning
the bids received for the Park Shelter and
Restroom/Shower Facility;

11. Consideration of awarding a bid for the Council member John P. Vandenberg
Park Shelter and Restroom/Shower
Facility;

12. Consideration of authorizing Mayor
Zavodny to sign the proposed City Clerk Joan E. Kovar
compliance order, accepting revisions
concerning the noncompliance issues at
the Wastewater Treatment Plant;
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.
22.

Consideration of authorizing the purchase of an 8x7 Agua-Aerobics decanter with
fiberglass float, for a unit price of $18,946.38 plus freight;

Consideration of authorizing approximately $2,000 for purchasing gravel or
crushed rock for the roads and driving lanes at the Wastewater Treatment Plant;

Consideration of Resolution No. 37 2018 subdividing the property owned by Joan

Riha (14006 x 124e®2#®%9 Daygiad | @i desWrl1®06 of S 25
W 10006 @&fndLdthe6f ES4@606 of Lot 3 & E 006 of Lot
Addition, into two tracts;

Consideration of reappointing Catherine Marie Hoeft to another 5 - year term as a
Commissioner on the David City Housing Authority - Board of Commissioners;

Consideration of two (2) appointments to the Planning Commission, a regular

member and an alternate member, each to serve three (3) year terms, effective

May 1, 2018;

Consideration of Ordinance No. 1285, on the second (2" reading only, annexing the

Brian and Mistyn Kozisek property located at the corner of 14" & C Streets legally

described as follows: A parcel of land located in the South Half of the Southwest Quarter

of Section 20, Township 15 North, Range 3 East of the 6" P.M., Butler County, Nebraska,

being described as follows: Referring to the Southeast corner of the South half of the

Sout hwest Quarter of said Section 20; thence S9
Half of the Southwest Quarter, a distance of 1544.86 feet to the east right of way line of

14" Street and the Southeast corner of East David City, an addition to the City of David

City, Nebraska; thence NOO 586300W, on said eas
said addition, a distance of 594.00 feet to the northwest corner of a tract of land as

described in film book 2011, Page 1512 and recorded in the office of the Register of

Deeds, for Butler County, Nebraska, and the point of beginning, thence continuing

NOO586300W (assumed bearing) on said east |lines,
S89 596340E, a distance of 163.50 feet; t hence
di st ance of 270.66 feet to the north,ohsaide of S a
north line, a distance of 163.43 feet to the point of beginning, containing 1.02 acres, more

or less; (Passed on 1% reading 3/14/18)

Consideration of the following:

1) Don Prochaska reported that he hitachuckh ol e o n farddas Submited a
bill
for compensation in the amount of $465.72;

2y Brandy Pavel 6s son hit a hol eandirunedthisel al | ey b
pan;

3) Connie Colter reported that Michelle & Robert Day, 221 G Street, had a plugged
sewer line in December. Conni e cl aims that the City hadné
line, so she
feels the City should be responsible.

Consideration of Resolution No. 4 i 2018 adjusting rental rates and supply costs for the
street department;
Status of e mp | o Mebraskd Cammisstmom of ladudtrial Relations;

Adjourn.

CITY COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
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April 18, 2018

The City Council of the City of David City, Nebraska, met in open public session in the
meeting room of the City Office, 557 North 4" Street, David City, Nebraska. The Public had
been advised of the meeting by publication of notice in The Banner Press on April 12, and an
affidavit of the publisher is on file in the office of the City Clerk. The Mayor and members of the
City Council acknowledged advance notice of the meeting by signing the Agenda which is a part
of these minutes. The advance notice to the Public, Mayor, and Council members conveyed the
availability of the agenda, which was kept continuously current in the office of the City Clerk and
was available for public inspection during regular office hours. No new items were added to the
agenda during the twenty-four hours immediately prior to the opening of the Council meeting.

Present for the meeting were: Mayor Alan Zavodny, Council members Gary Smith,
Thomas Kobus, Pat Meysenburg, Kevin Hotovy, Dana Trowbridge, and John Vandenberg, City
Attorney Jim Egr, and City Clerk Joan Kovar.

Also present for the meeting were: Craig Reinsch of Olsson Associates, Larry Griffiths,
Pam Kabourek, Jeff Hilger, Planning Commission members Janis Cameron and Jim
Vandenberg, Sheriff Marcus Siebken, Building Inspector Ray Sueper, Sewer Supervisor Travis
Hays, Sewer Operator C.J. Novak, and Park/Auditorium Supervisor Bill Buntgen.

The meeting opened with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Alan Zavodny informed the public of the
wall of the meeting room and asked those present to please silence their cell phones.

The minutes of the March 14", and March 26™, 2018 meetings of the Mayor and City
Council were approved upon a motion by Council member Trowbridge and seconded by Council
member Kobus. Voting AYE: Council members Hotovy, Smith, Meysenburg, Kobus,
Trowbridge, and Vandenberg. Voting NAY: None. The motion carried.

Council member Trowbridge made a motion to approve Progress Estimate #8 for
Constructors, Inc., in the amount of $99,235.60. Council member Kobus seconded the motion.
Voting AYE: Council members Hotovy, Smith, Meysenburg, Vandenberg, Kobus, and
Trowbridge. Voting NAY: None. The motion carried.

Council me mb er #K ol beel that Al Hattove should befpresent at all
Council meetings, #2 - | think that the Council should get the reports of the compaction tests
that are going on; |l saw some stuff that | donét agree on. 0

Mayor Zavodny asked for consideration of claims. Council member Smith made a
motion to authorize the payment of claims and Council member Meysenburg seconded the
motion. Voting AYE: Council members Kobus, Trowbridge, Vandenberg, Hotovy, Smith, and
Meysenburg. Voting NAY: None. The motion carried.

Mayor Zavodny asked for any comments or questions concerning the Committee and
Officer Reports.

Building Inspector Ray Sueper introduced Maxwell Kathol, who has applied for the City
Administrator position.
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Max we | | Kat hol stated: AThank you, | apprecia
am a Nebraska native, my last name is Kathol (pronounced Cawtil) so | come up from the
Hartington area. Professionally I 6m a Management

Economic and Community Development, so city administration is definitely in my forte or career
pat h, hop eddgreaksyccess sb farv lewadraised in Plattsmouth, Nebraska. 16 v e
worked professionally in Crete, Nebraska, which is where | got to meet Mr. Sueper. | was kind
of the right hand of the City Administrator for three years as the Director of Economic
Development, and working with Ray in the permit process but seeing it from preliminary project
details,t o s ubmi ssi on ,tofecrditroentreffoits, iMr&stPudtsre detail, etc., etc. A lot
of experience with grant programs, as well, and looking to continue that. My forte has typically
been in Cities of the 1 Class and larger, y o ur g u defiditelyotgole nmyifutt ajtention
because of your level of education and then the level of security that you have in your
community. Those are some of the quality of life enhancements that my family and | are looking
for. 1 am a family man and | would move my family to the community. | would like to hear more
about the position. | decided to come up here to see how everybody works together and see
how things are getting done. 0

Building Inspector Ray Sueper stated: AThe RF
demolition of the Milda Grey property, 897 5" Street, have gone to the newspaper for
publication, so we will be taking bidsatt he next mont h 6ferthe demalitiondf meet i ng
thathouse. My of fice has been fairly busy with correct.i

havendédt had great success in collecting those fin
Officeatt hi s poi nt. I didnét know what the status of
information on that?0o0

City Attorney Jim Egr stated: AThey are pendi

Mayor Zavodny asked if Ray wanted to talk about the Matt Thomas project. (located
between fiLO to MHSBmeet)least of 11

Building I nspector Ray Sueper stated: Alt is
schedule quite a bit. They ran into some ground water issues with their houses so we had them
on hold until they get some engineering reports and soil tests back to me. They did have some
very inclement weather this winter that slowed things down. The framers did excellent work out

thereon the ones they did manage to getbakyne. They
everything is going in very well and very high-quality builds. On the utility pole, as far as | know,
they have contracted with Butler Countytomoveit. | dondét have a time fr ame

the works. We, Mike (Davis) of Olsson Associates, and in addition to Craig, we did a walk-

through of the project and handed Obrist a fairly substantial list of things to work on, correct, and

they took that pretty well to heart and they are working on it thisweek. Ol ssonés did a f an
job of making them aware of every detail that needed to be corrected so | am very happy with

their performance on our behalf. (Craig stated that Gilmore was also there for the walk through, as the
engineer of record.)

Mayor Zavodny stated: AnOver the past mont h, m
amount of concern shared with me about the security of our schools and | know that Sheriff
Siebken has been addressing that and working on that a lot. Could you give us just a really
brief status update on kind of where we with that

Sheriff Siebken stated that they have scheduled a meeting, for adults, and provided a
meeting notice as follows: With tragic events happening all over the United States, we as a
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Sher i f & wanty@ufas a basiness member, church member and citizen of Butler County to
o he aBw talcetri vGo usnhtoyo tSehre.r i fTf
teamed up with the Nebraska State Patrol to host this special two-hour community forum. This
forum will prepare you in the event an active shooter would ever take place in our community.
This two-hour program will be held at the David City High School Gym, on April 25, 2018, at
7:00 p.m. Itis our hope that we, as a community, never see a tragic event like this in Butler
County but we want to take a proactive stance and be prepared. This event is open to anyone

be prepared in

and we hope to see you there.

t he

event

Council member Hotovy made a motion to accept the Committee and Officers Reports
as presented. Council member Vandenberg seconded the motion. Voting AYE: Council
members Kobus, Smith, Meysenburg, Trowbridge, Vandenberg, and Hotovy. Voting NAY:

None. The motion carried.

Craig Reinsch of Olsson Associatesst at e d:

i We

di d

open

bids

project on April 3", The bids came in ranging from $2.47 million to $2.95 million which was
substantially higher than our anticipated price. Alternate bids for a different lagoon cover
material (Alternate Bid 1) and replacement of valves in the existing pumping station (Alternate
Bid 2) were also included for consideration. The apparent low was Ericksen Construction of
Blair, Nebraska, and it is my understanding they did the work for the 1997 plant upgrades so

they were i

nterested in

comi ng

back

and

doi ng

was such that it is recommended to continue with the original cover specified in the base bid.

Eri ksenbds price

for

Al t e r thesexisting Bciive lift Btatibnovas e pl ac e

$12,000 which is less than estimated. The total of the Base Bid and Alternate Bid 2 is $2.481
million. We are aware that this is quite above the estimate. We have talked with USDA, there
are contingencies that will cover that within the project funding. What that will do though is that
will shrink eligible funds for the south part of the collection system that we were hoping to do.
We are starting to see a trend. One of the hardest parts for us to estimate is how busy people
are, steel prices, etc. When we talked to Eriksen to try to figure out where things were, they let

us know that this is the third covered | agoon
area. So, | wish | had better news for you at this time, but that is the status of the bids.
OLSSON WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS I TABLLATIGN
e e DAVID CITY, NEBRASKA - 2018 Sgrapls | On#Os 1928
1:30 p.m. Pageof1
Eriksen Construction Co Inc. Weiss Gonstruetion Co, LLG Qbrist & Co,, Inc.
) CONTRACTOR Blalr, Nebraska dba/PWG - Dstrolt, M1 Columbus, Nebraska
Item No.| ITEM Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum Lump Sum
Base Bid: Work shall consist of gnnsral construction of a
‘Wastewater Treatment Plant:
TOTAL BASE BID- §2.468,000.60 §2,701,645.00| $2,350,000.00|
Similar to Base Bld wilth Alternate Anaerobic Lagoon
Cover Materal:
[TOTAL ALTERNATE BID 1: Deduct §7,500.00]  Deduet m,m.anl No Big
Removal & Replacement of 7 Gates Valves (GV-1 to GV-7 in the |
Existing LIft Station Ranging in sizes from 6-12 inches. l
TOTAL ALTERNATE BID 2. Add $12,000.00 Add $32,000.00] $24,250.00
Substantially Complate On or Before May 1, 2019 May 1, 2019 May 1. 2019
Complete and Ready for Final Payment On or Before: August 15, 2019 August 15, 2019 August 15 2019
Addendum No. 1 March 23, 2018 March 23,2018 March 23 2018
Addendum No. 2 March 28, 2018 March 28 2018 IMarch 28, 2078

Addendum No. 3

March 30, 2018

March 30, 2018

IMarch 30, 2018

USDA Documents:

Yes

Yes

Yes

Named Equipment:

Yes

Yes

Yos

Bid Guerantee:

5% Bid Bond

5% Bid Bond

5% Bid Bond

Remarks:

FiIProjacts1003-1925D0cUma nlsEpecs 18-04-04 IWNTWIAL Bid Teb.t SIEIDTASLUMFEUM

for

t hi

6

pro
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Craig Reinsch of Ol sson Associates stated: i W
Ericksen for the base bid and alternate bid #2 to replace those valves, so $2,481,000.00, but we
are recommending, should you choose to do so, we are recommending that you do so
contingent upon USDA funding approval. There are some loose ends that we found out about
that | will talk about next. So, USDA came back, as you know they authorized us to at least go
out for bid, they submittowh at 6 s he &ffice ef Gendral Council with all of the things that
web vpeepared, and then they sometimes have comments that we need to address. They had
two comments, most of them have to do with the agreement between the City and Henningsen,
and they wanted USDA to have this signature line and to modify some language that was
basically, it talked about modifying the agreement to a term of 40 years, but being able to split it
25/ 15, where the initial agreement would be twenty-five, thereafter, shall be renewed for an
additional period of not less than fifteen. | know the Council had talked about having a twenty

year ter m, really itsd not much there as far as m
agreement is currently open for discussion between us and Henningsen, and so they have said

Aishoul dnthée @Qeuvide, you can award tonight, but <co
agreement is in place and t h®oythepracommemdaddbncait c hanc e

gets to a point where the City and Henningsen are happy with it, to submit it to them so that they
canmake surethat t hey dondét havebanlh panteesd8 dHeforen th
otheritemt o bring up | guess is you can, you dondét ha\
want to, you can consider bids for up to sixty days which gets you to the first part of June so that
allows you to consider this at your May meetihgs houl d you so choose. 0

Mayor Zavodny stated: AUSDA is very confident
a guestion before | get into maybe where my concerns lie. The lady from USDA did talk about
the time frame that we would need to adjust, so it was fairly minor about those things. | guess
my biggest consternation with thisHeanwagdenodos ha:
seems really premature and that was one thing the lady from USDA actually agreed with me
about. | think we have a few items, that | think in principal that Henningsen agrees with, but we
dondt have an agreement. Wedre | ookingowabw, we t
25/15 or 20/20 the risk to the ratepayer is what happens, and no one can predict. If you would
have told me a month ago that Younkers were going out of businessé é . di dnét see that <c
I woul dndédt have thought ab ataltheitroubles withbrickand ugh | dv e
mortar and those kinds of things. We are putting an awful lot of trust in the fact that
He n n i n gvilleontinge to operate, or continue to operate here, and our only security, and it
reallydidnot get #fonnewien leasked it before is, we get what®& here? What value
does that have if it candét b e nduhebidratepaykrisgond? gener a
So, you know maybe it& my job to be the thorn at this point, but it& a huge risk. | hear the other
arguments:  oué Wwget to have Henningsen&wh at 6 s wr o n g heyire dabigyateu ? 0 f
payer, they pay for our swhatiftheg@enothetebp okYat ¢ &b
anything. Us, holding our breath, isn @oing to do anything about it if they decide to not be here.
If their business modelsc hange and the demand goes down, i tds 1
not going to stay heSoéjustwalad totaintlaat tanight and Idoldghe r i s k .
lady from USDA and Craig earlier this afternoon, | will say my peace, and then probably get
voted down six to nothing and then we wil/ move O

T
t dh

Council member Trowbridge made a motion to table consideration of awarding a bid for
the Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements. Council member Meysenburg seconded the
motion. Voting AYE: Council members Hotovy, Smith, Kobus, Vandenberg, Meysenburg, and
Trowbridge. Voting NAY: None. The motion carried.
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Mayor Zavodny stated: Al belyboewtaks abeuthew e a way
close we are, but | think we are a ways away. What | would like to do, is identify two council
members that are willing to work on this with Henningsen® and Counsel (Jim Egr) to see if we
can get an agreement that is more-ready for the Council to vote on. Does that make sense?

Everything that we have right now, is what Henningsend6 s has asked for. That i
negotiation, it has been very one sided at this point. We have agreed on PH and 65% if you

want to boil it downtowhatwe 6 ve done i n our participation to so
additional items that Mr. Mostek provided today and where we are at. So, are there two people

t hat would be interested to work with Counsel t o

Council member Trowbridge and Council member Kobus volunteered to work with
Counsel (City Attorney Jim Egr) concerning the Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements and
Henningsends share

The following bids were received for the Park Improvements, consisting of a new park
shelter and restroom/shower facility:

ftem B ltem C TOTAL BID
PRE-ENGINEERED RESTROOM/

BIDDERS PARK SHELTER SHOWER FACILITY Items B + C
Rogge General Contractors, Inc. $42,000.00 $136,000.00 $178,000.00
Lincoln, NE
Bierman Contracting, Inc. $54,670.00 $146,080.00 $200,928.00
Columbus, NE
Fauss Construction, Inc. $62,000.00 $144 500.00 $206,500.00
Hooper, NE
Shelby Lumber Co., Inc. $55,261.00 $167,428.00 $222.689.00
Shelby, NE
B-D Construction, Inc. $66,010.00 $164,465.00 $230,475.00
Columbus, NE
Lacey Construction, Inc. $57,000.00 $200.000.00 $257,000.00
Wahoo, NE
Green Gable Contracting, LLC $99,267.00 $175,775.00 $275,042.00
Fort Calhoun, NE

Miller & Associates reviewed all proposals, no errors were noted, so it was their
recommendation that the bids be accepted and the contract be awarded to Rogge General
Contractors, Inc., contingent upon Land & Water Conservation Fund approval.

Council member Trowbridge stated: AiMy questio
from financially? What do we have $175,000.00?

Park Supervisor Bi |l |I[thiBsinhbugherowbrisige neednt&1d0;500 whéh Y € S 0
he said One Hundred Seventy Five. We actually have Grant: $85,455; Sales Tax $40,000; Keno $45,000 =
$170,455.00]

Council member Trowbridge stated: Soii wedére $178, 000.00 + $15, 00

agreement = $193,000.00. Where does the other $18,000 come from? [We are actually short
$22,500.00]
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Council member Kobus asked: AWhy coul dnét the
somebody around here would doit. To me , I dondét know how t ke showe
why have them, itds a waste of money.

Much discussion followed.

Mayor Zavodny stated: ACounci l member s, where
design we have? Do we figure out how to come up with $15,000 somewhere else? Do we start
over, wedre going t ¢ .thhmer eg asmhnee emegd rnee etrda knigng i s c L
and stuff is going to save us a | ot more than the
engineer i ng costs. 0

Council me mb er Tr oelNibthe shbogess take nzote eut than wed W e

planned on, then we have some money to spend back to re-engineer them. | agree with you, |

think if we knock two shower stalls off the end of this thing, you change the price considerably.

Can you give a negative change drydadmohotYwe @axrmc eipd
bids and then w e @ilelthem a change order? o

Mayor Zavodny stated: AThat 6s not a r

terri e
recommend we do i s, heddépuascsogept hehehbogebiodd

bl

er r
Council member Trowbridge made a motion to accept the bid of Rogge General

Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $178,000.00 for a new park shelter and restroom/shower

facility, with the contingency that we are going to ask for a change order. Council member

Kobus seconded the motion. Voting AYE: Council members Hotovy, Smith, Meysenburg,

Vandenberg, Trowbridge, and Kobus. Voting NAY: None. The motion carried.

City Attorney Egr stated: il we ttorneyBleane c hange
McCoin, (Office of Regional Counsel, US EPA, Region 7), and it would my recommendation that

the Council aut horize t he Ma yoagraphs 1@, 15531, andB2ateh e c o mp |
changes that include the limits under the prior NPDES Permit (as well as the current NPDES Permit) and that clarify

which alleged violations occurred under which Permit. In addition, a requirement was added for semi-annual reports

in paragraph 54.]

Council member Hotovy made a motion to authorize Mayor Zavodny to sign the
proposed compliance order, accepting revisions concerning the noncompliance issues at the
Wastewater Treatment Plant. Council member Trowbridge seconded the motion. Voting AYE:
Council members Vandenberg, Meysenburg, Smith, Kobus, Hotovy, and Trowbridge. Voting
NAY: None. The motion carried.
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LINITED STATES EKVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
EEGION 7
11201 RENNER BOULEVARD
LENEXA, KANSAS 66219
BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR
IN THE MATTER OF )
} Docket Mo, CWA-07-2018-003
David City, Nebraska ]
J
) FINDINGS OF VIOLATION AND
Respondent ] ORDER FOR COMPLIANCE ON
) CONSENT
Proceedings under Section 309(a)(3) of the )
Clean Water Act, 33 US.C, § 1319a)3) )
]
Ereliminary Statement

I. The following Findings of Violation and Administrative Order for Compliance on
Consent (*“Order on Consent™) are made and issued pursuant to Section 309(a)(3) of the Clean
Water Act ("CWA™), 33 U.5.C, § 1319a)(3). This Authority has been delegated by the
Administrator of the ULS. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) 1o the Regional
Administrator, EPA, Region 7 and further delegated to the Dircctor of Region 7's Water,
Wetlands and Pesticides Division.

2. Respondent is the city of David City, Nebraska (“Respondent™ or “the City™) and was
at all relevant times a municipality organized under the laws of the state of Nebraska.

3, EPA, together with the Respondent enter into this Scetion 309(a)(3) Order for the
purpose of carrying out the goals of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 ef seq., to “restore and maintain
the chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the Nation™s waters.”

4. 1t is the Parties” intent through entering into this Order to address Respondent’s alleged
noncompliance with the CWA and violation of its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (“MNPDES™) permil, As set forth in this Order on Consent, the Parties have amicably
reached agreement regarding the imeframes for Respondent to attain compliance with the CWA
and its NPDDES permit,

5. By entering into this Order on Consent, Respondent (1) consents to and agrees not to
conlest the EPA's authority or jurisdiction to issue and enforce this Section 309(a) Order on
Consent, () agrees to undertake all actions required by the terms and conditions of this Order on
Consent, and (3) consents to be bound by the requirements set forth herein. Respondent neither
admils nor denies the specific factual allegations or Findings of Violation in this Order on
Consent, except that Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations herein, Respondent also
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waives any and all remedies, claims for relief and otherwise available rights to judicial or
administrative review that Respondent may have with respect to any issue of fact or law set forth
in this Order oa Consent, including any right of judicial review under Chapter 7 of the
Administrative Procedore Act, 5 UL.E.C. §§ T01-704,

Siatutory and Regulatory Framework

6. Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § [311{a), prohibits the discharge of pollstants,
except in complisnce with, infer aliz, Section 402 of the CWA, 33 TLE.C. § 1342, Section 402 of
the CW A, provides that pollutanis may be discharged in accordance with the terms of an NPDES
permil issued pursuant to that Section,

7. To implement Section 402 of the CWA, the EPA promulgated regulations codified at
40 C.F.R. Part 122, Under 40 CF.R. Part 122.1, an MPDES permit is required for the dischorge
of pollutants from any point source into waters of the United States.

8. As defined by 40 C.F.R. § 403.3(g), a Publicly Owned Treatment Works (“POTW™)
includes, but is not limited to, devices and systems for storage and treatment of municipal
sewapge and sewers, pipes and other conveyances of wastewater,

9, The Mebraska Department of Environmental Quality (“NIDEQ") is the state agency in
Mebraska with the authority to administer the federal NPDES program, pursuant to Section 402
of the CWA, 33 UL.E.C. § 1342, and applicable implementing regulations, EPA refains concurrent
enforcement authority with authorized state programs for violations of the CWA.

EFA’s General Allegations

10, Respondent is a “person,” as defined by Section 502(5) of the TWA, 33 UL5.C.
§ 1362(5).

11. Respondent is the owner and/or operator of a POTW in David City, Nebraska, that
includes a wastewaler treatment plant (“WWTP™), consisting of two sequencing batch reactors
(“EBRs™) and a five-cell controlled discharge lagoon system, and & sewage collection system,
which receives wastewater from various domestic and non-domestic sources, inchuding
wastewater discharged from an egg processing facility owned by Henningsen Foods, Inc,

12, The POTW discharges throegh Outfall 001 to Keysor Creek, an undesignated
tributary to the Morth Fork of the Big Biue River.

13, The POTW is a "point source”™ that “discharges pollutants™ to “navigable waters™ of
the United States, as these térms are defined by Section 502(14), (12) and {7) of the CWA, 33
LLS.C. § 1362014, (12) and (7), respectively.

14, On July 1, 2010, the NDEQ issued NPDES permit number NED021199 to the City
pursuant fo Section 402 of the CWA, 33 ULS.C. § 1342 (“2010 NPDES Permit™). On April 1,
2016, the NDEQ issued MPDES permit sumber MED02 1199 to the City, which removed the
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mass limits for BOD and TS5 and revised the ammaonia limits for Ouifall 001 by inchiding
mterim and final ammonia limits and a compliance schedule (“2016 NPDES Permit™),

15. Part I of the City"s 2010 NPDES ermil containg limitations for discharges of effluent
from the City’s POTW through Outfall 001 to Keysor Creek, as summarized below.

Parameter Units Discharge Limits Monitoring
Frequency
Monthly Average | 7-Day Average
Biochemical Oxygen  kpfday | 49.6 736
Dernand (“BOD™) me/L 30.0 45 10 Maonthiy
Taotal Suspended Solids | kpfday | 147 221
(“TSE") mg/L. 8.0 12000 Monthly
Monthly Average | Daily Maximum
Spring Ammonia | mp/fL 12.5 25.2 Monthly
kp/day | 547 10.97
Sammer Ammonia  mgfL 4.5 9.7 Monthly
kpiday | 5.36 10.75
Winter Ammaonia | me/L 11.8 23.6 Monthly
kgiday | 10.3 20,13
Acute Toxicity TUa Report 1.0 Once/permit
Ceriodaphmia sp
Pimepiules promelas
Daily Minimum I¥aily Mlsximunnm
pH 8.1 6.5 9.0 Maonthly

I6. Part I of the City's 2016 NPDES Permit contains limitations for discharges of effloent
from the City™s POTW through Outfall 001 to Keyvsor Creek, ns summarized below.

Parameter Units Discharge Limits Monitoring
Frequency
Monthly Average | 7-Day Average
Riochemical Onypen mgT. 30.0 45.0 Monthly
Demend (“BOD™)
Total Suspended Solids mg/L B0 12000 Bonthily
(“TS87)
Monthly Average | Daily Maximum
Interim Spring Ammonia | mp/L 4.13 528 Ponthly
(March 1 — May 31) kg/day | 547 10.97
Interim Summer Ammonia | mg/L 4.05 B.12 Monthly
{(June 1 — Oct. 31) kpdday | 5.36 10,75
Interim Winter Ammonia | mg/@. | 7.81 15.7 Monthly

(MNov. 1 — Feh. 28) kgdday | 10.03 20.13
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Acute Toxicity TUa Report 1.0 Once/permit
Ceriodaphria sp
Pimephales promelas
Daily Minimum Daily Maximum
pH S.U. 6.5 9.0 Monthly

17. Part IV of Respondent’s NPDES Permit requires samples to be taken annually at the
head-works of the WW'TP prior fo the treatment system for flow, BOD, TSS and pH.

13. Paragraph 14 of Appendix A of Respondent's NPDES Permit requires that monitoring
results be reported at intervals specified on Discharge Monitoring Reports (“DMRs”) submitted
to NDEQ quarterly. Paragraph 14.d.iii provides that if the permittee monitors any pollutant more
frequently than required by the permit using specified test procedures, the results of such
monitoring shall be included in the calculation and reporting of the data submitted in the DMR.

19. Part V of Respondent’s NPDES Permit contains a compliance schedule for the
construction of upgrades to the WWTP necessary to meet ammonia limits from Outfall 001.

20. The City and Henningsen entered into a Sewer Participation Service Agreement and
Permit (“City-Henningsen contract”) on March 13, 1997 and again, most recently, on October 1,
2016 regarding the allocation of costs of the POTW based on usage of the treatment facility. The
City-Henningsen contract contains daily maximum loading limits for BOD, TSS, and Total
Kjeldahl Nitrogen (“TKN”), and flow discharged from Henningsen’s facility to the POTW,
violation of which potentially subjects Henningsen to a surcharge. The 2016 City-Henningsen
contract also includes an incident charge for violations of pH limits.

21, On October 31 through November 3, 2016, EPA performed a Compliance Sampling
Inspection of the City’s WWTP (“Inspection™) and an Industrial User and Compliance Sampling
Inspection at Henningsen’s facility under the authority of Section 308(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1318(a).

22. During the Inspection, the EPA inspector reviewed documents, including DMRs and
other monitoring data collected for the time period January 2014 to September 2016, observed
the City’s POTW, sampling stations, and Henningsen’s facility, and collected effluent samples.

23. The City provided information to the inspector by letter dated November 7, 2016,
following the Inspection.

24. A copy of the Inspection Report was sent to the City on or about February 8, 2017.

25. On or about April 7, 2017, EPA issued a request for information to the City pursuant
to the authority of Section 308(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1318(a), requiring submittal of
information regarding, among other things, reports made to the City Council concerning the
operation of the POTW, communications between the City and Henningsen, and plans to address
compliance with the POTW?’s NPDES Permit. The City submitted its response to the information
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request by letter and Statement of Certification dated April 27, 2017 (*City’s Information
Request Response™).

26. On or about April 7, 2017 EPA also issued a request for information to Henningsen
pursuant to the authority of Section 308(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1318(a), requiring submittal
of information regarding, among other things, discharge monitoring reports, communications
between the City and Henningsen, and plans to address compliance with Henningsen’s
NPDES/NPP permit. Henningsen submitted its response to the information request by letter and
Statement of Certification dated May 5, 2017 (“Henningsen’s Information Request Response™).

27. Information from the Inspection, the City’s submission following the Inspection, the
City’s Information Request Response, and Henningsen’s Information Request Response indicate,

in part, that Respondent:

a. Has been aware since at least January 2008, based on an engineering evaluation of
the POTW by Olsson Associates, that the Henningsen facility’s discharge
significantly impacts the ability of the WWTP to operate within design
parameters, that discharges from the Henningsen facility can, at times, overload
the WWTP and cause treatment process upset, interference, and pass through, and
that upgrades to the City’s WWTP are necessary to comply with the City’s
NPDES permit;

b. Informed Henningsen by letter dated September 25, 2014 that there would be no
surcharge for exceeding discharge limits in the City-Henningsen contract;

c. Informed Henningsen by letter in September 20135 that the City’s WWTP has
been overloaded, the WWTP’s scquencing batch reactors (“SBRs™) needed to get
back on track, and the City would be enforcing the City-Henningsen contract
going forward; and

d. Has been working with one or more consultants to consider improvements to its
WWTP and/or collection system to achieve compliance with the City’s NPDES

permit.

EPA’s Findings

Count 1
Failure to Comply with Effluent Limitations

28. The facts stated in Paragraphs 1 through 27 above are re-alleged and incorporated
herein by reference.

29. Part I of the Respondent’s NPDES permit establishes discharge limits and monitoring
requirements for Outfall 001, as described in Paragraphs 15 and 16, above.

30. The City’s POTW effluent failed the whole effluent toxicity test in June 2015,

31. The City’s POTW effluent discharged through Qutfall 001 exceeded the ammonia as
nitrogen and BOD limits of its 2010 NPDES permit on multiple occasions in 2014 and 2015
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including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Ammonia as nitrogen:

i.
ii.

iit.

iv.

b. BOD:
i
i.

Monthly average loading: June 2014, July 2014, October 2014, February
2015, March 2015, April 2015, May 2015, June 2015, December 2015;
Daily maximum loading: June 2014, October 2014, February 2015, May
2015, Tune 2015, December 2015;

Monthly average concentration: June 2014, July 2014, October 2014,
December 2014, February 2015, March 2015, April 2015, May 2015, June
2015, July 2015;

Daily maximum concentration: Febrvuary 2015, March 2015, April 2015,
May 2015, June 2015, July 2015;

Monthly average loading: February 2015;
Monthly average concentration: February 2015, March 2015, April 2015;

32. Further, the City’s POTW effluent discharged through Outfall 001 exceeded the
ammonia as nitrogen, BOD, TSS and pH limits of its 2016 NPDES permit on multiple occasions
in 2016 and 2017, including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Ammonia as nitrogen:

i.
ii.
iii.

b. BOD:
i.
ii.

c. TSS:
i
ii,

d pH

i.

Monthly average loading: May 2016, June 2016, September 2017;
Daily maximum loading: June 2016, September 2017,
Monthly average concentration: June 2016, September 2017;

Monthly average concentration: May 2017;
7-day average concentration: May 2017;

Monthly average concentration: May 2017, August 2017;
7-day average concentration: May 2017;

Daily Maximum: May 2017.

33. Each failure to comply with effluent limitations is a violation of the terms and
conditions of Respondent’s NPDES permit and, as such, is a violation of Sections 301(a) and
402 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a), 1342(p).

Count 2
Failure to Submit Monitoring Data

34. The facts stated in Paragraphs 1 through 33 above are re-alleged and incorporated

herein by reference.

35. Standard Condition 14.d.iii of Respondent’s NPDES Permit requires that if the
permittee monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by the permit using certain test
procedures, the results of such monitoring shall be included in the caleuiation and reporting of
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the data and submitted in the DMR..

36. The City has collected 24-hour composite samples of the WWTP influent since at
least April 2015, as well as daily 24-composite samples and/or individual hourly samples at
Henningsen’s outfalls that discharge to the POTW., Certain samples of Henningsen's discharges

that appeared high strength were analyzed further.

37. During the Inspection, the inspector obtained a copy of the spreadsheet maintained by
the City that contained the WWTP influent and Henningsen monitoring data for April 2015 to
October 2016. A review of this data and the DMRs submitted by the City found that the City
reports one annual sample of the WWTP influent but not the additional influent monitoring data

on its DMRs,

38. The failure to report additional monitoring data is a violation of the terms and
conditions of Respondent’s NPDES permit and, as such, is a violation of Section 402 of the

CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(p).

Count3
Unauthorized Discharges and Bypasses

39. The facts stated in Paragraphs 1 through 38 above are re~alleged and incorporated
herein by reference.

40, Respondent's NPDES Permit authorizes the discharge of poliutants only from
specified outfalls, identified in the NPDES Permit as Outfalls 001, 002, and 004, to a specified
water of the United States, subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in the NPDES

Permit.

41. Standard Condition 15 of Respondent’s NPDES Permit states that any bypass is
prohibited unless it is unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property
damage; there are no feasible alternatives to the bypass; and notices are submitted as required by

this section of the permit.

42. On May 12 and 13, 2016, the City discharged untreated wastewater from manholes
and/or other locations within the City's collection system, also known as SSOs, and bypassed
1.75 million gallons of untreated or partially treated wastewater from the City’s WWTP into

Keysor Creek.

43. The discharge of pollutants from any location other than a permitted outfall
constitutes a violation of the conditions of Respondent’s NPDES Permit and Sections 301(a) and

402(p) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a), 1342(p).
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Count 4
Failure to Properly Operate and Maintain the POTW

44, The facts stated in Paragraphs 1 through 43 above are re-alleged and incorporated
herein by reference.

45. Paragraph 7 of Appendix A of Respondent's NPDES Permit requires that the City “at
all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and control (and
related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with
the conditions of this permit. Proper operation and maintenance also includes effective
performance based on designed facility removals, effective management, adequate operator
staffing and training, adequate process controls, adequate funding that reflects proper user fee
schedules, adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures. This
provision requires the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar systems which are
installed by a permittee only when the operation is necessary to achieve compliance with the
conditions of the permit.”

46. During the Inspection, the inspector reviewed the daily flow and rain data for the
WWTP for January 2016 to September 2016 and found that the WWTP's 24-hour design flow
was exceeded on 32 days and the WWTP's daily maximum flow was exceeded on 16 days
during this time period, mostly in April and May 2016 when there was approximately 15 inches
of rain and when the SSOs and bypass described above in Paragraph 42 occurred, indicating a
significant inflow and infiltration problem in the coliection system.

47. In noncompliance reports submitted to NIDEQ, the City has indicated that inflow and
infiltration problems in the collection system have contributed to exceedances of effluent limits
in its NPDES Permit, including the following: in the report received by NDEQ on July 18, 2016,
the City stated that on May 12, 2016, the cause of noncompliance with the ammonia loading
limit in its NPDES Permit was storm flows; in the report received by NDEQ on July 24, 2017,
the City stated that on May 8, 2017, the cause of noncompliance with the TSS concentration
limit was spring turnover coupled with heavy flows and rain and the cause of noncompliance
with the BOD concentration limit was extremely short SBR cycles to allow for high storm flows.

Reasonable Time to Achieve Compliance

48. Pursuant to Section 309(a)(5)(A) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(a)(5)(A), and having
taken into account the seriousness of the violations, the EPA finds that three (3) years is a
reasonable time for Respondent to achieve compliance with its Permit.

Order for Compliance on Consent

49. Based on the EPA Findings set forth above, and pursuant to Section 309(a)(3) of the
CWA, 33 U.5.C. § 1319(a)(3), the EPA hereby ORDERS the Respondent, and the Respondent
hereby AGREES, to take the actions described below.
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